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" Strategic Report

The Directors of British Steel Holdings Limited ("the Company") and its subsidiaries (together "the Group"), present their Strategic
Report and audited consolidated financial statements for the period trom 17 May 2016 to 31 March 2017.

The Company was incorporated on 17 May 2016 and acquired British Steel Limited and its subsidiaries on 1 June 2016 from Tata Steel UK
Limited (“TSUK?”). As such this report reflects the first consolidated performance of the Group.

- The acqusition was such that any prior financing of the Group via TSUK was written off and the purchase was debt free of any financing
obligations to TSUK, including the fact that the Group has not been a contributor to the ‘old’ British Steel defined benefits pension scheme

and as such has no exposure to any liabilities that may relate to that scheme. The business has secured financing both from Olympus Steel,

the parent entity, and asset based lending facilities gencrating more than sufficient headroom for the business to continue to grow, '

The Group is part way through a restructuring and transformation plan launched in the prior year, but set to deliver through 2016/17. As such
. the'reported performance in 2016/17 reflects the start of the benefits from the Group’s transformation plans.

Group background

British Steel - an old name but a new brand - was launched on 1 June 2016. The Group has an annual turnover of €1.2bn movmg towards
£1.4bn and is a leading European steel producer making circa 2.8 million tonnes of steel per annum, >

The business includes an integrated steelworks, in Scunthorpe in the UK, with four blast fumaces (Mary, Bess, Anne and Victoria — the four
queens) of which two are in operation, a BOS (Basic Oxygen Steel) route making 1,450 tightly controlled steel specifications, four casters
manufacturing slabs, blooms and billets and three mills. Long steel products are also manufactured in the Company’s rolling mills in Hayange
(France) and Teesside and Skinningrove 1n the North East of England.

These core manufacturing facilities are complimented by a number ot downstream-distribution businesses and, over the past 12 months, the
opening of new global sales offices in the USA, Germany, Spain,.ltaly, Sweden, Netherlands, Poland, Singapore,and Taiwan,

The Company’s product range includes sections, wire rod, special profiles and rail supplied to a wide range of demanding global markets.
Principal activities ’

The principal activities are the manufacture and sale of steel throughout the world. The Group produces carbon steel by the basic oxygen
steelmaking method at an integrated steelworks in the UK based in Scunthorpe. L.ong steel products are manufactured in rolling mills at

Scunthorpe, Teesside, Skinningrove and Hayange (France), including rail, sections, profiles and wire rod. The Group owns TSP Projects
whose principal activity is the consultancy, design and installation of infrastructure projects.

Business review

The results -of the Group are as follows:
Period ended
31 March
2017
£000

62,025

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
(1,663)

Corporation tax charge

Profit for the period 60,362

The Group’s trading performance is shown in the Group's Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on page 1 l.'
The Group's Consolidated Statement of Financial Position on page 13 of the financial statements shows that total equily was

£70,520,000 as at 31 March 2017.

The Company's Statement of Financial Position on page 15 of the financial statements shows (hat the total equity was £nil.
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Strategic Report (continued)

Business review (continued)

The Directors regard sales, EBITDA and operating profit as their key performance indicators.

Sales during the period were £991m and EBITDA, prior to the net gain on bargain purchase and rationalisation costs, was £48m. Given
this 1s the year of acquisition by the Company and the Group was part way through its restructuring plans there were a number of one
off items in this year related to the acquisition and restructuring of the Group. Inclusion of these costs increases the reported EBITDA
to £87m and a reported net profit of £60m inclusive of a net gain on bargain purchase of £50m. However the directors believe that the
£48m underlying EBITDA is more reflective ot the business post acquisition and fundamentally reflects the delivery of the first vear of
the Group's transformation plan.

The balance sheet shows the Group in a €71m net asset position at the end of the financial year and it continues to invest with £34m incurred
on capital expenditure post acquisition and a net working capital position of £290m including cash and cash equivalent balance ot £53m.
" Included in non-current liabilities-are the pension liabilities related to TSP Projects and British Steel France Rail.

The Directors feel that in our first year of trading we have proved that a new steel company can, through a robust transformation programme,
turn a negative position into a positive position. We have more work to do but we have made great progress under our new ownership.

Together with our shareholder we have introduced the principles of entrepreneurship, agility, flexibility and responsiveness into our
organisation. Becoming increasingly entrepreneurial is enabling us to put tnore emphasis 6n ownership and responsibility.

" In autumn 2016 we introduced a new orgamsanon structure — five separate Business Units to help deliver the financial results we need. Each
of these is now managed on their individual profit and loss performance and has ‘clear focus on their own pertinent strategic goals, This
approach enables us to operate them like mini businesses in their own right — it helps us to clearly understand better the challenges, the
opportunities and the risks that each area of the business is facing. .

Introducing the new business unit approach has also helped us to form a vision for British Steel. It is focused on three important levels:

. Firstly, locally through positive stakeholder engagement we want to become a leader of business and community re-development

in the areas in which we operate;
. Secondly, in the UK we want to be the national champion in our chosen markets — recognised as the centre of uompetence tor

sleel making and the partner of choice; and
. Thurdly, internationally we want to be a competitive exporter and the tight strategic business partner.

Our Business Units

Primary Products

Thisis the supplier of steel for the downstream divisions below as well as having an established market position for semi steel products.
It is focused on operational efficiency, implementing a set of targeted actions across the whole cost base and further developing long-term
strategic relationships in market segments and with customers for .primary products that demand high quality BOS grade steels.

Construction i

A supplier of Sections and other steel products into the UK and other markets. It seeks to develop an improved product range service
offering which will allow the Company to offer added value to high value customers through delivering differentiated service and
technical solutions:

Rail
A business with Rail mills in the UK and France, offering highly technical and complex service offerings into the UK, France and

other markets. The Rail division continues to innovate and improve prodmt and service ottering, especially to key clients. It uses
British Steel's expanding commercial tootpnnt to continwe growing sales in European and international markets and leverac'. quality

IP to otfer higher value specialist solutions in technically challenging markets.
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Strategic Report (continued)
Business review (continued) : . ,

Rod

A supplier of rod product into the European market, expanding its technical range and capability of the business to support its continued
. growth into ditferentiated and automotive markets, focusing on its service and technical otfering into the market.

Special Profiles

Continue to develop service and high quality offering with key customers and séek to expand and improve the product range, continuing
to innovate with unique ofterings into the market. ,

Business transformation

As mentioned at the time of acquisition the Company had alrcady embarked on an extensive turnaround project. This started in 2013
when we announcéd the exit trom the loss making plates market and closure of a coke oven to reduce the cost base and reduce future
capital expenditwre requirements, The transformation work continued through 2016/17 and is ongoing. It is based on 6 work streams
targeting a radical improvement to the cost base and business performance. L

The transformation programme includes reaching an agreement with the Trade Unions on aAnew Defined Contribution Pension Scheme
(implemented June 2016) and 3% temporary 12 month salary sacrifice trom all employees (implemented June 2016). No liabilities
were carried forward trom the previous British Steel Defined Benefit Pension Scheme. , -

The Group is opcrating in a challenging market environment but sees that the pace of improvement continues into 2017/18 with the new
business structure supporting the long Lerm strategic prospects of the Group and underpinning the further growth in profitability of the

Group.
Investments and acquisitions . ' .

* The Group continues to invest in the business to maintain the existing capabllmes of the business while looking to identify tar%tud
investment opportunities to grow the product range and capability of the business in line with the overall development strategy of the
Group, either through organic growth or inorganic growth where it can enhance the footprint and strategic range of the business.

Principal risks and uncertainties N

Competitive pressure in Europe is a c.onumung risk for the Group. The Group manages this risk by competitive pricing, management
of product range and availability. . .

Following the vote in 2016 to leave the European Union (EU), there is considerable uncettainty in regards to interest rates, currency values,
consumer disposable income and conswmer spending. The Group continues to monitor the position of all the macro elements of the economy,
both current and forecast. The Group will adapt any plans as necessary to mitigate any negative etfects of the vote to leave the EU, but it is
too early at the signing date of these ﬁmm,xal statements for any specific p]ans to be developed or acted upon as the tull effects of the vote
will not be known for some time.

Financial instrument risks are covcred under the Finzmcial Instrument section.

The Group's - ultimate parent company is Olympus Steel 2, a company incorporated in Jersey, the accounts of which arc neither
consolidated nor publicly available. The Directors consider Marc Meyohas, Nathaniel Meyohas and Storford Limited the ultimate
controlling parties of the Company.

The Group has access to considerable financial resources from across the Group. As-a consequence,'the Directors believe that the Group is
well placed 1o manage its business risks successtully despite the current uncertain economic outlook.

Apprved by the Board on 26 SCP tember 2017 and signed on its behalf by:

P Bernscher
Director
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Directors' Report ) ,

The Directors present their Annual Report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the period from 17 May 2016 to 31
March 2017 '

Results and dividends

. The Group profit for the financial period ﬁmouuted to £63,603,000. The Directors do not recommend a d1v1dend payment. The Directors
are optimustic for the [uture prospects for the group’s businesses

Directors
The Directors who held office during the period and to the date of this report were as follows:

P Bernscher (appointed 2 May 2017)

D M Goldstein (appoitited |7 May 2016)
R Junck (appointed 2 May 2017)

P R Martin (appointed 2 May 2017)

S A Mason (appointed 2 May 2017)

M J Mevohas (appointed 17 May 2016) -
N J Meyohas (appointed 17 May 2016)
R C Perlhauen (appointed 17 May 2016)

The Company has indemmnified its current Directors. The indemnity arrangements are qualifying mdemmty provmons under the
‘Companies Act 2006 and are currently in force at the date of this Annual Report. :

Working responsibility - Environment

The Group recognises the importance of its environmental- responsibilities, monitors its impact on the environment and designs and
implements policies to reduce any damage that might be caused by the Group’s activities. All the Group’s manufacturing sites operate . -
under the control of an Envirommental Mmmgement System certified to ISO 14001. The Company actively looks for ways to improve
its efficiencics, small and large. It carries out a robust programme of detailed energy audits. It also captures its waste gases and uses
them to generate electricity and steam to power its manufacturing processes. Manufacturing facilities are operated to maximise the
volume of by-product materials generated for use by others such as. blast furnace slag in concrete and steel making slag in civil
engineering. Where it is not' possible to re-use our wastes internally, we operate recycling centres to reduce waste to landtill. The
Company’s sites are home to a wide variety of wildlife, including some rare and protected species such as great-crested newtls, water
voles, badgers and bats. . .

Working responsibility — Sustainability

The Company has a record of developing innovative products and processes that contribute to a lower carbon future. Sustainability is
embedded in our company ethos, and we are comumitted to leading the UK steel industry in this arena. It earns a 'very good' rating
under the sustainability standard BES 6001 which recognises it makes its products using rx.sp()nbibly sourced materials. Achicving the
BES 6001 standard certifies it can continually improve in energy efficiency, greenhouse gas emissions and waste management, and

engage positively with the communities in which it operates.
!

Working responsibility - Communities

The Company suppons. its local communities through a strategy known as the ‘Building Stronger Communitics programme’. This
initiative, which includes in-kind support, brings sustainable benefits to large groups of individuals with themes covering leaning
and skills, health, safety and wellbeing and protecting and enhancing. the environment.
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Directors' Report (continued)
Employces - P
Details of the number of employees and related costs can be found in note 8 to the financial statements on page 33.

Within British Steel there are well established and ettective arrangements at each business location for communication and consultation
with trade union representatives to syslematically provide employees with information on matters of concern to them. Well-developed
policies and procedures operate in all parts of the Group for the purpose of consulting and negotiating with trade unions and employee
representatives on a regular basis, so that views of employees can be taken into account in making decisions that are likely (o alfect their

interests:

The Group’s policy is to give full and tair consideration to applications for emplovment made by disabled persons, having regard to their
particular aptitudes and abilities and employs them where suitable work can be found. The requirements of job applicants and existing
members of staff who have a disability are reviewed to ensure that reasonable adjustments are made to enable them to perform as well as
" possible during the recruitment process and while employed. All reasonable measures are taken to ensure that disabled employees are given
the opportunity and facilities to participate fully in the workplace, in training and’in carcer development and promotion opportunities. In
addition, every effort is made to find appropriale altemative jobs for those who become disabled while working for the Group,

Employee involvement

The Group is committed to involve all'employees ilj the performance and development of the Group. Employees are encouraged to
discuss with management matters of intcrest to the employec and subjects affecting day-to-day operations of the Group.

Research and development

The Group invests in rescarch and developent in order to bnng about chanoes in product and process developments.

Slavery and human trafticking statement

- Section 34 of the Modem Slavery Act 2015 requires relevant organisations carrying on business in the UK to publish a statement
setting out the steps taken to ensure that no slaverv or human tratticking is taking place within the organisation or supply chains. A
supplier visit will be carried out for any new, material supplier. Periodic reviews are then carried out by asking suppliers to resubmit a
questionnaire response and evidence.- The Board of British Steel has approved a statement setting out the measures taken by the Group
during the tinancial period ending 31 March 20l7

Going concern ,
The Directors expect that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future as both the Company and the Group have adequate net assets: The business retains a strong liquidity position, with significant
headroom in its asset based lending facilities and a revolving cash facility from Olympus Steel. As part of this going concern review a
number of sensitivities were undertaken around sales volumes, levels of gross margin and changes in exchange rates, to ensure the business
would continue to be a going concern in more adverse markel conditions

The Directors® assessment of going concern considers the impact of the risks and uncertainties set out in‘the strategic report. After
considering the impact of reasonably possible downside sensitivily analysis and afler moking cnquiri::> and considering relevant
uncertainties, the Directors have a reasonablc cxpuclatlon that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational vastem.e tor the
foreseeable future. Thus we continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual financial statements.

Dividends
There has been no interim dividend paid or declared in the period.
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Directors' Report (continued)
Financial instruments

The principal financial instruments held by the Group are as tollows:
¢  Cash, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables,
e Bank borrowings, including bank loans, term loans and overdraits; and

¢ Investments in subsidiaries and other Group companies.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments arc interest rate ns]\, llqmdltv risk and exclmngp rate risk. The Board
reviews and agrees the-policies for managing each of these nsl\s and they are summarised below,

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fubure cash tlows of a financial instrument will Huctuate because ot changes in market interest
rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market rates relates primarily to the Group's long term debt obh gations with floating

interest rates.

The Group manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of borrowings. At 31 March 2017, 100% of the Group’s borrowings
are on floating interest rates. ) .

Liquidity risk '

The Group monitors its risk of a shortage of ﬁmds using a liquidity planning tool.

The Group’s objective is to mamlam a balance between continuity of funding and tlexibility through the use of secured and unsecured bank
loans and overdrafts. The Group assessed the concentration of risk with r&spect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Group
has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding,

Exchange rate risk

Exchange rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates to the Group’s operating activities (when revenue or
expense is denominated in a foreign currency) and the Group s investments in foreign subsidiaries.

The Group manages it§ exchange rate risk by hcdgmo transactions that are expected to occur within a mtv(mmm 12 month period for sales
and pwrchases. .
Disclosure of information to the auditor

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors' report contirm that, so far as they are each aware, there is no
relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor is unaware; and each Director has taken all the steps that they ought to
have taken as a Director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit intormation and to establish that the Company's auditor is

aware of that infonnation.

Independent Auditor
Deloitte LLP were appointed as auditor during the period and have expressed their willigness to continue in office as auditor and a
resblution-tosreappoint theni Will be: proposed at Ui toithcoiring: Aiiliual General Meeting.

Aj p‘rb ed by the Board of’ Dircctors'on 26 Sep)embe/"l()ﬂ and signed on its behalf by:

P Bernscher -
Director
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Statement of Dlrectors Responsnblhtnes in respect of the Annual Report and Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Directors™ Report and the. consolidated financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and parent company financial statements for each linancial period. Under that
law they have elected to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with Intemational Financial reporting Standards (“IFRSs™)
as adopted by the EU and the parent company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law), including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework™.

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satistied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and parent company and of their profit or loss for that period.

[n preparing the parent company financial statements, the directors are required fo:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained
in the financial statements; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is mappropnatc to presume that the Company, will continue in
business. .

In preparing the group financial statements, International Accounting Standard | requires that directors:

e properly select and apply accounting policies;
e present information, mcludmo accouriting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable. comparable and understandable
infonmation;
- provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in [FRSs are insufficient to enable users to
*understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial
performance; and . .
¢ make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as'a going concern.

The Directors are responsible tor keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent company and enable them to ensure
that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible‘for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the company’s
website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
in other jurisdictions
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lndependent Auditor’s Report To The Members Of British Steel Holdings Limited

We have audited the financial statements of British Steel Holdings Limited for the period from 17 May 2016 to 31 March 2017 whu,h
comprise the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated and Company Statement of Financial Position, the
Consolidated and Company Staternent of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the related notes 1 to 30, The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statements is applicable law and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. The financial reporting tramework that has been applied in the
preparation of the parent company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United ngdom
Gencrallv Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework™..

Tlus report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Comp'uues Act 2006.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume - responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Compan\ s members as a body, for our audit work, tor this report, or for the opinions we have

formed.”
Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditor

As cxplained more fully in the Statement of Directors' responsibilities in respect of the Annual Reports and Consolidated Financial
Statements set out on page 8 the Directors are respons1ble for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satistied that
they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit ‘and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statcments

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sutficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are tree from.material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an - assessment
of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group and the parent company’s circumstances and have been consistently

" applied and adequatcly disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements: In addition, we read all the financial and non-tinancial information in the Strategic Report’
and the Directors' Report to identity material inconsistencies with the Report and Accounts and to identify any intbnnation that is
apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the
audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

. Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion: . .

o the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the parent company s atfairs as at 31 Ma:uh
2017 aud of the Group’s profit tor the 10 month penod then ended;

e the oroup financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the Européan Union;

‘®  the parent company [inancial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United ngdom Generally Au.,epted
Accounting Practice; and

e the finuncial statements have been preﬁnred in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
. . /
Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

¢ the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the tmzmclal year tor which the financial atatcments are
prepared is consistent:with the tmancml statements. - .

e the Strategic Repoxt and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements

In hoht of the knowlcdge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in thé course of the audlt we have
identified no material misstatements in the Stmtcvm Report or Directors’ Report.
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Independent audltor s report to the members of British Steel Holdmgs Limited (continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the followmg matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you 1f in our

opinion:

® adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received

- from branches not visited by us; or
® the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns or
e  certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

® we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

ot ot

Matthew Hughes BSc (Hons), ACA (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP : .
Statutory Auditor

" Leeds, United Kingdom

-

26 September 2017

10
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the period ended 31 March 2017 : . . .

Period from

17 May 2016 to

, e 31 March 2017

: Note " £000

Revenue . 4 990,554

Operating costs - B : \ 5 (909.860)

Operating profit ’ ’ 80,694
47,847 |

7 . (11,085)

Pepreciation-and amortisation 5 (5,890)

Gain on bargain purchase 2 49,822
Opciating: profit 80,694 |
Finance income . v ] 10 ‘ 10

Finance expense : . 11 © (18,679)

Profit before taxation . 62,025

Tax on profit 12 (1,663)

Profit for the financial period attributable to owners of the Company . 60,362

Other comprehensive income:

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: .
Actuarial gains and losses in the year . _ (9,065)
Deferred tax on defined benefit pension schemes . 7,235
. (1,830)
" Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange rate moveiuents on currency net investments o ) C 8,557
8,557

Other comprehensive income for the period . o . 6,727

Total comprehensive income for the peridd éttributnble to owners of the Company . 67,089
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income ('contin.ued)
for the period ended 31 March 2017

Period from
17 May 2016 to
. 31 March 2017
Note ' : £000
Profit attributable to: .

Ovwners of the parent B , 60,362
Non-controlling interest . =
60,362

Total comprehensive income attributable to: ) . :
. Owners of the parent : . 67,089
Non-controlling interest , . 3. =
67,089

All results derive from contimﬁng operations.
The notes on pages 19 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.

12



Consolidated Statement of Financial Posmon ‘

at 31 March 2017

Non current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets

. Retirement benefit asset

Current assets
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Prepayments

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Bank loans and overdrafts

Obligations under finance leases
" Provisions

Non current ligbilities

Bank loans

Obligations under financc lcases
Deferred tax liabilities -
Provisions

Retirement benefit obligations

Total liabilities
Net assets

Equity

Called up share capxta]
Retranslation reserve
Actuarial reserves
Retained earnings

Non-controlling interest

Total equity

Note

13

15
23

16
17

17

18

19
20
21

25
25
25
25

’

British Steel Holdings Limited
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31 March 2017

.£000

95,017
28,820
1,001

124,838,

303,480
242,957
14,086
52,952

613,475

738,313

(241,785)
(45,770)
(2,133)
(34,046)

(323,734)

- (227,788)

(20,204)

(6,086)
(41,092)
(48,889)

(344,059) .

(667,793)

70,520

8,557
(1,830)
60,362

67,089

3,431

70,520
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
at 31 March 2017 . g

The notes on pages 19 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.

‘ol British Steel Holdings Limited were approved by the Board of Directors on b Sepm\)u 2017 and

Director -~
Company number: 10185111

14



British Steel Holdings Limited
. Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements
- . For the period ended 31 March 2017

Company Statement of Financial Position
at 31 March 2017

31 March 2017

Note £000
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 17 ' 171,353
Total assets 171,353
Non current liabilities
20 (171,353)

Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Total liabilities - (171,353)

Net assets

Equity
" Called up share capxta.l

Total equity
!

The notes of pages 19 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The Companv reportéd a profit for the period from 17 May 2016 to 31 March 2017 of £nil.

e financial stalemeints:of British Steel Holdmgs Limited were approved by the Board of Directors on 26 jqa}ember 2017 and
&Sened o it hehall_'_ 1 ,

P Bernscher
Director

Company number: 10185111 L 4 .



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

at 31 March 2017

_ Balance at 17 May 2016

Total comprehensive incéme for the period
Profit tor the financial period’

Actuarial gains and losses

Deferred tax on defined bencfit pension schemes
Retranslation of foreign subsidiaries

"Total coniprehensive income for the period

British Steel Holdmgs Limited
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements
For the period ended 31 March 2017

Actuarial

Share Retranslation gains and Retained
capital reserve losses earnings Total equity
£000 £000 £000 - £000 £000
- - . - 0,362 60,362
= = (9,065) = (9,065)
- - 7,235 - 7,235
- 8,557 - - 8,557
- 8557  (1,830) 60,362 67,089

Thie notes on page 19 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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: : ’ Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements
' For the period ended 31 March 2017

Company Statement of Changes in Equity -
at 31 March 2017 = - ‘ .

Share ‘Retained Total
capital earnings - equity
£000 - £000  £000

Balance at.17 May 2016 . . - - - - ‘ -

Total comprehensive income for the period )
Profit for the financial period . . - 2 -
Total comprehensive income for the period ’ - = -

Balance at 31 March 2017 . - . -

The notes on pages 19 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the period ended 31 March 2017

Note 31 March 2017
Cash flows (used in)/from operating activities £000 .
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 62,025
Adjustments for: ‘
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 13 5,890
Finance expense 11 18,679
Finance income . 10 (10
Negative goodwill released to income 2 (49,822)
Currency translation . 3,068
Loss on disposal 1,708
Adjustment for pension funding (1,800)
Opérating cash flows before working capital 39,738
Decrease in trade and other receivables 17 43,142
Increase in inventories 16 (116,911)
Decrease in trade and other payables 19 12,143
Decrease in provisions 24 . 9.107)
Cash flows used in operations (30,995)
Income taxes paid 110
Interest paid (1,452)
Net cash used in operating activities (36,557
Cash flows for investing activities
Interest received 10 10
Acquisition of a business 22,285
Acquisition of plant, property and equipment (34,427)
Nef cash used in investing activities (12,132)
Cash flows from financing activities )
Proceeds from new loan . 105,725
Payment of finance lease liabilities (3,808)
Net cash from financing activities - 101,917
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 453,228v
Cash and cash equivalents at 17 May 2016 . =

(276)

. Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 Malfch 2017

52,952

The notes on pages 19 to S5 for an integral part of these tinancial statements.



British Steel Holdings Limited
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statcments
For the period ended 31 March 2017

Notes to the financial statements

1. Accounting policies

Britisil Steel Holdings Limited‘( “the Company") is a private company incorporated, domiciled and registered in England and Wales in
the UK. The registered numnber is 10185111 and the registered address is 31 Hill Street, London, W1J SLS, United Kingdom.

Basis of preparation

The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as *the Group”). The parent
company financial statements present information about the Company as a separate entity and not about the Group.

The Group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Directors in accordance with International Financial Reporting-
Standards as adopted by the EU (“Adopted IFRSs”).. The Company has elected to prepare its parent company financial statements
in accordance with FRS 101.
The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006. "The Company meets the definition
of a qualifying entity under FRS 100 (Financial Reporting Standard 100) issued by the Financial Reporting Council. Accordingly, in the
_ period ended 31 March 2017 the company has decided to adopt FRS 101 “and the financial statements have therefore been prepared in
accordance with FRS 101 (Financial Reporting Standard 101) Reduced Disclosure Framework as issued by the Financial Reporting Council
incorporating the Amendments to FRS 101 issued by the FRC in July 2015 and July 2016.
As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available under that standard in relation (o
financial instruments, capital management, preseritation of a cash-ﬂow statement and certain related party transactions. The Company’s
shareholders have been notified in writing about the intention to take advantage of the disclosure exemptions and no objéctions have been
received. Where required, equivalent disclosures are given in the consolidated hmncml statements.

The Company also intends to take advantage of thesc exemptions in the financial statements to be issued in the following year. Objections
may be served on the Company by shareholders holding in aggregate 5 per cent or more of the total allocated shares in the Company.

The company has taken advantage of the exemption in Section 408 of the Comparues Act 2006 from the requirement to present a separate
profit and loss account tor the parent company. .

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently in these Group and parent company
financial statements.

Judgements made by the Directors, in the apphcauons of these accounting policies that ha\e significant effect on thc financial statements
and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustments in the next period are discussed below.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty .

The preparation of financial statements 'in accordance with IFRS requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the:

(1) reported amounts of assets and liabiﬁties;

(ii) disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the accounts; and
(1) reportcd amounts of income and expenses during the periodr

Critical accounting judgements and the key sources of estimation uncertainty in applying the Group's accounting policies arise in
relation to provisions created for rationalisation and related costs, environmentsl remediation and legal claims. Each of these areas
relies upon a number of cstimates and judgements which are subject to uncertainty and which may lead to an adjustment within the
next tinancial year. . :

Estimates in calculating provisions for rationatisation and related costs, environmental remediation and legal claims are based on
previous experience, third party. advice and are reassessed on a regular basis. Judgement is required in assessing the scale costs and
timing ot those costs;

Critical accounting judgements

The following are critical judgments, apart from those involving estimations (which are dealt with separately below), that the Directors have
made in the process of appl\,mg the Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
Group Accounts.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

(a) Employment benefits ' : ] .

The Group operates three defined benefit pension schemes. All post-employment benefits assocnated with these schemes have Leen
accounted for in accordance with [AS 19 "Emplovce Benefits". As detailed within the Statement of Significant Accounting Policies, in
accordance with IAS 19, all actuarial gains and losses have been recognised unmedmtelv through the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income:

For all defined benefit pension schemes, pension valuations have been performed using specialist advice obtained from independent
qualified actuaries. In performing, these valuations, significant actuarial assumptions and judgments have been made to determine the
defined benefit obligation, in particular with regard to discount rate, inflation and mortality.

(b) Fair value adjustments

I*air value adjustments tor business combinations are determined in accordance with IFRS 3, ‘Business Combinations’. The Group measures
the assets and liabilities acquired through a business combination at fair value, Similarly, c.ons]dcrauon (including consideration in shares)
contingent consideration and any stake in the acquiree held prior to the busmess combination are also measured at fair value.

‘When significant influence is acqulred In an associate, or joint control is acquired in a joint venture, British Steel also remeasures its share
in the assets and liabilities in that associate or joint venture to its acquisition-date fair value, Where possible, fair value adjustments are
based on external appraisals or valuation models. Valuatlon methods rely on various assumptions such as estimated future cash flows,
remaining useful economic life etc. :

Fair value measurements that cannot be fully based on observable market parameters mvolve Judoement that could affect eslunated fair
value. .

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

. . . /
The key assumptions conceming the tuture, and other key sources of estunation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying values of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below... )

@ “Provisions

Provisions for rationalisation and related measures, environmental remediation and legal claims are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. This involves a series of management judgements and estimates that are
based on past experience of similar events and third party advice where applicable. Where ap propnale and relevant those provnsnom
are discounted to take into consideration the time value of money.

In particular, redundancv provisions are made where the plans are sufficiently detailed and well advanced and where appropriate
communication to those atfected has been made at the end of the reporting period. These provisions also include charges for any
termination costs arising from enhancetnent of retirement or other post-employment benefits for those employees affected by (hese

plans.

Provisions are also created for long term employee benelits that depend on the length of service, such as long service and sabbatical
awards. The amount recognised as a liability is the present value of benefit obligations at the end of the reporting period, and all movements
in the provision (including actuarial gains and losses or past service costs) are recognised immediately within the Income Statement..

The Group participates in the EU Emissions Trading Scheme, initially measuring any rights received or purchased at cost, and recognises
,a provision in relation to carbon dioxide quotas if there is any anticipated shortfall in the level of quotas received or purchased when
compared with actual emissions in a given period. Any surplus is only recognised once it is realised in the torm of an external sale.

(b) Impainuent of property, plant ani equipment

At each reporting period end, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment to determine whether there
is any indication that the carrying amount of those assets may not be recoverable through continuing use. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does
not generate cash flows that are independent Irom other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating

unit ("CGU") to which the asset belongs.
. 20
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

unit ("CGU") to which the assel belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate, based upon the Group's long term weighted average cost of
capital (WACC"), which also recognises the comparative WACCs of its Furopean peers, with appropriate adjustments for the risks.
associated with the relevant units. If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrving amount of the asset (or CGUY)is reduced to its recoverable amount. Animpairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrving amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recogniscd as

income inmediately.
(c) Taxation
Accruals for corporation tax contingencies require the Directors to estimate the level of corporation tax that will be payable based upon the

interpretation of applicable tax legislation on a country-by-country basis and an assessment of the likely outcome of any open tax
computations. All such accruals are included within current liabilities.

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assels and
‘liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Therefore, estimates are made to
establish whether deferred tax balaiices should be recognised, in particular in respect in respect of non-trading losses:

Measurement convention ’ . .
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except that the following asscts and liabilities are stated at their fair
value: derivative financial instruments. .

Adopted IFRS not yet applied

The following relevant [FRSs have been issued but are not yet effective and have not been applied by the Group in these financial
statements. The Group are currently undertaking an exercise to assess the financial impact of their adoption:

Annual Improvements to [FRSs — 2014-2016 Cycle;

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation — Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38;
Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements - Amendments to [AS 27, ’

Disclosure Initiative — Amendments to IAS 1. .

IFRS 16 Leases; '

TFRS 9 Financial mstruments and

IFRS |5 Revenue from Contract with Customers

e o o 0 ¢ 0.0

IFRS 9 Financial instruments

The new version of the standard incorporates a new expected loss impairment model and introduces limited amendments to the classification
and measurement reguireients for financial assets.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contract with Customers

The new standard introduces the core principle that revenue must be recognised when the goods and services are transferred to the
customer, at any transaction price.. Any bundled goods or services that are distinct must be separately recognised.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

[FRS 16 Leases -
The new standard established principles tor the recognition, measurenient, presentation and disclosure of leases, with the objective of ensuring
that lessees provide relevant information that falthfullv represents thosc transactions:- This standard replaces the following accountmo
standards:

IAS 17: Leases;

IFRIC 4: Detenmining whether an Arr'mgement wntamsa Lease;

SIC-135: Operating Leases — Incentives; and

SIC-27: Evaluating the Substance of Transactions in the Legal Form of a Lease

Going Concern

After making enquiries and takm,_. into consideration thc. profitability and financial poqmon of the Company and the Group, the Directors
have formed a judgement, at the time of approving the financial statements, that there is a reasonable expectation that the Compaily
and the Group has access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the tinancial statements. - :

The Directors’ assessment of going concern considers the impact of the risks and uncertainties set out in the strategic report. After
considering the impact of reasonably possible downside sensitivity analysis and after making enquiriea and considering this uncertainty,
the Directors have a reasonable e\pectauon that the Group has adequate resources to continue it operational existence for the foreseeable
future, Thus we continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption
of the going concem basis can be found in the accounting policies of the consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is cxposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those retums through its power over the entity. In assessing control,
the Group takes into consideration potential voting rights. The acquisition date is the date on which control is transferred to the acquirer.
The " financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences -
until the date that control ceases. Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a- subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling
interests even it doing so causes the non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance.

Tramsactions eliminated-on consolidation

Intra-Group balances and transactions and any unrealised income and expenses arising trom intra-Group transactions are eliminated:
Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there

is no evidence of impairment.

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of’ Group entities at the foreign- exchange rate
ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the Statement of Financial
Position date are retranslated to the functional currency at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences -
arising on translation are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
retranslated to the functional currency at foreign exchange Tates ruling at the dates the fair value-was determined.

The results of overseas subsidiaries are translated at the average rates of cxuhm\gc during the period and their balance sheets at the rates ruling
at the balance sheet date.. Exchange difterence arising on translation of the opening net assets and results of overseas operations are reported

in other comprehenswe income and accumulated in equity.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)
Classiﬁcation of financial instruments issued by the Group .
Financial instruments issued by the Group are treated as equity ouly to the extent that they meet the followmg two conditions:

(a) they include no contractual obligations upon the Group to deliver cash or other financial assets or to exchange financial assets or
financial liabilities with another party wader conditions that are potentially untavourable to the Group; and

(b) where the instrument will or may be settled in the Company's own equity instruments, it is either a non-derivative that includes
no obligation to deliver a variable number of the Company's own equity instruments or is a derivative that will be settled by the
Company exchanging a lixed amount of cash or other financial assets for a fixed munber of its own equity instruments:

To the extent that this definition is not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a financial liability. Where the instrument so
classified takes the legal form of the Company’s own shares, the amounts presented in these financial statements tor called up share
capital and share premium account exclude amounts in relation to those shares. )

N

Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instrunents comprise 111vestments in equity and debt securities, trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, loans and borrowings, and trade and other payables. .

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost
usmo the etfective interest method, less any impaimnent losses.

Trade and other payables )
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Bank overdrafis that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are mcluch.d as a component of cash and cash cquivalents for the purpose only of the

cash flow statement.

Imerest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to imtial recogmtion,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impainment losses.

Loans and borrowings ‘

Debt issue costs are capitalised and netted against the associated proceeds. Debt is stuted at the amount of net proceeds after deduction
of finance costs. Finance costs are amorused to the Statement of’ Comprehenslve Income over the term of the debt at a constant rate on

the carrying amount.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

In the ordinary course of business the Group uses certain derivative financial instruments (o reduce business risks which arise from its
_exposure to foreign exchange. The instruments are confined principally to forward foreign exchange contracts. Derivative financial
instruments are recognised at fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately on profit or loss,,
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1 Accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations
Business combinations are acuounlcd for uising the acquisition method as at the acquisition date, which is the date on which control is
transferred to the Group.
"The Group measures oood\v1ll at the acqumuon date as:
e the fair value of the consideration transterred; plus
e the recognised amouunt of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus
e the fair value of the existing equity in{erest in the acquiree; less
e (he net recognised amount (generally tair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
When the excess is ncgative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
‘Costs related to the acquisition, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration payable is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent consideration is classified as
equity, it is not remeasured and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration are recognised in profit or loss.

On a transaction-by-transaction basis, the Group elects to measure non-controlling intcrests, which have both present ownership interests

and are entitled to a proportionate share of net assets ol the acquiree in the event of liquidation, either at its fair value or atits proportionate,
interest in the recognised amount of the identifiable net assets of the acquiree at the acquisition date, All other non-controlling interests

are measured at their fuir value at the acquisition date.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of
property, plant and equipment.

Leases in \\'/h;ch the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased assel are classified as finance
leases. Where land and buildings are held under leases the accounting treatment of the land is considered separately trom that of the

buildings. Leased -assets acquired by way of finance lease are stated at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present
value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and less accumulated impairment losses.

Included in property, plant and equipment are loose plant and tools which are stated at cost less amounts written off related to their
expected useful lives and estimated scrap value and also spares, against which impainment provisions are made wherc necessary to
cover slow moving and obsolete items.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated usetul lives of each part of an item of
property, plant and eqmpment Land is not deprecmted The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Land and buildings U 25- 50 years
Fixtures and fittings 15-25 years
Plant and equipment 4 -25 years

.

Assets in course of construction are not depreciated until the assets are available for their intended use.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each Statement of Financial Position date:

Investments

Fixed asset investments are shown at cost less provision for impairment.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Inventories

Inventories of raw materials are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the 'first in, first out'
method. Inventories of partly processed materials, tinished products and stores are individually determined at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is the price at which the inventories can be
realised in the nonmal course of business after allowing for the cost of conversion trom their existing state to a finished condition and
for the cost of marketing, selling and distribution, Provisions are made to cover slow moving and obsolete items based on historical
experience of utilisation on a product category b'ms which involves individual businesses considering their local product lines and

market conditions,
Emp!pyee benefits

Defined contribution plans -

A defined contribution plan isa post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed contributious into a separate entity and
will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined confribution pension plans are
recognised as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the periods during which services are rendered by employees.

Difterences betwecen contributions payable in the period and contributions actually pmd are shown as either at,cruals or prepayments
in the Statement of Financial Position. -

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Group’s net obligation in respect
of detined benefit pension planb is calculated by Cbl.lmdlmg the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return tor their
service in the current and pnor periods; that benefit is dlscoulmd to determine its present value and the fair value of any plan assets

(at bid price) are deducted.

The Group detenmjnes the net interest on the net defined bcneﬂt liability/asset for the period by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the begining of the annual period to the net defined benefit assets.

The Group operates a detined benefit plan as follows:

The scheme 15 q final salary defined benefit plan that includes life assurance for members. L

The scheme is managed both by trustees appointed by the sponsoring employers and by member nominated’ trustees. The trustees

focus on risk management and undertake to be conversant with the required knowledge and understanding as specified in the Pensions

Act 2004 and in hne with the Pension regulator’s code of practice as revised in November 2009. ’

The scheme is exposed to the nonmal risks affecting a defined benefit scheme. These inclide the risk of volatile equity markets, tow

gilt yields, currency risk and member longevity nsk. These risks are managed using a prudently balanced asset allocation that includes

equity, property, bonds and gilts. The trustees are positively engaged with advisors to de-risk the portfolio. This includes matching

long term assets to hablhtles and currency hedging a proportion of overseas assels.

The discount rate is the yield at the reporting datc on bouds that have a credit rating of at least- AA, that have maturity dates

approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations and that are denominated in the currency in w]uch the benefits are expected to be
paid. '

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit plans comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interesl)

and the effect of the asset ceiling (it any, excluding interest). The Group recognises them immediately in other comprehensive income

and all other expenses related to detmed beneﬁt plans in employee benefit expenses in profit or loss.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits (countinued)

Defined benefit plans (continued)

When the benefits of a pizm are changed, or when a plan is Lurtailed, the portion of the changed benelit related to past service by
employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment, is recognised iminediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when the plan
amendment or curtailment occurs. . .

The calculation of the defined benefit obligations is pcrfdnned by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the

calculation results in a benetit to'the Group, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of benefits available in the form of any
tuture refunds from the plan or reductions in future contnbuhons zmd takes into account the adverse effect of any minimwn funding

requirements

o

For the defined, benetit scheme the amounts charged to operating profit are the current service costs and gains and losses on settlements
and curtailments. They are included as part of statfcosts. Past service costs are recognised immediately in-the Statement of Comprehensive
Income account if the bencfits have vested. If the benefits have not vested immediately, the costs are recognised over the period until
vesting occurs. The interest cost and the expected return on assets are shown as a net amount of other finance costs or credits adjacent to
interest. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the statement of total recognised gains and losses.

The Group recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs. The gain or loss on a
settlement is the difference between the present value of the defined benefit obligation being settled as deternuined on the date of
settlenent and the settlement price, including any plan assets transterred and any payments made directly by the Group in connection

with the settlement.

Defined benetit schemes are funded, with the assets of the scheme held separately from those of the Group, in separate trustee
administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the
projected unit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current ratc of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent
currency and term to the scheme liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each Statement

of Financial Position date.
Revenue

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and rendering of services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Sales are presented, net of value-added tax, rebates and discounts, and after eliminating sales within the

Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue and related costs can be reliably measured, it is probable that the collectability
of the related receivables is reasonablv assured and when the specmc criteria for each of the Group's acuvmes are met as follows:

(a) Sale of goods - Steel

Revenue from these sales is recognised when a Group entity has delivered the ‘steel to locations specitied in the agreed terms and the
customers have accepted the steel in accordance with the sales contract. .

(b) Rendering of services

Revenue from processing services is recognised when the services are rendered, using the percentage of completion method based on the
actual service provided as a proportion of the total services to be performed.

Expenses

Operating lease pavments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease
incentives received are recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the total lease expense,

Finance lease pavments

" Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability, The finance charge
is allocated to each period during the lease tenu so ds to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the

liability. . . 2%
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Notes to the financial statements (consolidated)

1 Accounting policies (continued)
Expenses (continued)
Operating lease payments

Payments made under operaling leasés are recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease
incentives received are recognised in the income statement asan integral part of the total lease expense.

Finance lease payments

Minimum lease payments are épportioned between the finance charge and the reduction ot the outstanding liability; The finance charge
is allocated to each period during the lease lenm so as to produce a constant penodlc rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability.

Financing income and expenses

Financing expeuses comprise interest payable, finance charges on shares classitied as liabilities and finance leases recognised in profit
or loss using the effective interest method, unwinding of*the discount on provisions, and net foreign exchange losses that are recognised
in the income statement (see foreign curency accounting policy). Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an assct that takcs a substantial time' to be prepared for use, are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.,
Financing income comprise interest receivable on funds invested, dividend income, and net foreign exchange gains.

Interest income and interest payable is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues, using the effective interest method. Dividend income
is recognised in the income statement. on the date the ennty s right to receive payments is established. Foreign currency gains and

losses are reported on a net basis.

Taxation

Tax on-the profit or losx for the penod comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is reoog,msed n t.he income statement except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case 1l is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the .expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the period, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the Statement of Financial Position date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous periods.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary ditferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences are not provided tor: the initial recognition of goodwill;
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable protit other than in a business combmatxon and
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amnount of
deterred tax prov1ded is baséd on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the Statement of Financial Position date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised. . .
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
2 Acquisitions of subsidiaries

Acquisitions in” the current period
A Acquisition of British Steel
On 1 June 2016, the Company acquired all of the shares in British Steel Limited in exchange for a cash pavment of £1 and the

assuinption of a liability of £15,000,000 payable to TSUK, The acquired business produces carbon steel by the. basic oxygen steel
making method for sale throughout the world. The acqumtlon provided the ownerslup of” an established steel makmg. business with an

expertise in long steel and a vertically integrated supply network.

-Whilst the acquired business was historically loss making and the seller, Tata, was publicly known as hzwing the intention to sell its
UK steel operations, a “very credible’ business plan was in place. The acquired business had been in profit tor several months prior
to the transaction and was expected by the acquirer to continue as such.,

In the ten months to 31 March 2017 the business acquired contributed revenue of £990,554,000 and net profit of £56,931,000 to the
consolidated net profit for the year. .
Effect of acquisition

The acquisition had the following effect on the Group’s assets and liabilities:

Acquiree’s net assets at the acquisition date:

Fair values on .

acquisition
£000
Property, plant and cquipment 47,835
Inventories 186,512
. Cash and cash equivalents 26,849
Trade and other receivables : . 299,272
Deferred tax assets ! . . - - . 18,785
Trade and other payables (286,822)
Provisions (86,835)
Amounts owed to.related parties (139,000)
Deferred tax liabilities (5,205
Net identifiable assets and liabilities 61 391
Consideration paid: '
Initial cash price paid -
Assumption of. liability to seller (15,000)
Negative goodwill 46,391

Negative goodwill arises on the acquisition because of the seller’s desire for a quick sale in advance of the UK’s referendmn on EU
membership in Jfune 2016 and the assessed level of overcapacity in the sector.,

Acquisition related costs

The Group incurred acqumtlon related costs of £7,700,000 related to due diligence and other advisory fees. These costs have been included
in administrative expenses in the Group’s consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

~

- Aequired recei vables

The fair value of acquired receivables was £299,272,000. The gross contractual amounts reuelvable are £307,396,000 and, at the ax,qmsmon
date £8,124,000 of contractual cash flows were not u(pec.ted to be received.
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B. Acquisition of Redcar Bulk Terminal

On 23 March 2017, British Steel Limited acquired 50% of the shares in Redcar Bulk Terminal Limited from Tata Steel UK. As part of the
British Steel Ltd acquisition by Olympus Steel, the transaction included the opportunity to acquire Tata’s stake in RBT and this was
concluded on 23 March 2017. The acquisition vehicle tor the transaction was British Steel Limited and a nominal cousideration, of £1,

was paid for TSUK’s stake in RBT,
The principal activity of Redcar Bulk Terminal Limited is to provide port users with a deep water terminal to handle a variety of bulk

products including coal, coke, petrolewn coke, granulated blast furnace slags, aggregates and scrap. Up to the point of SSI going into
liquidation it was setup to service SSI with its raw material requirements. Since that point it 11as being trading on the basis of securing
largely spot business in the shipping market.

The company has been fully consolidated into the Group from the date on which control was transferred to the Group. The acquisition did

not have a material impact on the group’s results for the periéd and would not have had a material impact on the group’s results had the
acquisition taken place at the start of the period. However the acquisition delivered a net pront ot £3,431,000 through the release of negative
goodwill to the profit and loss.

Effect of acquisition
The acquisition had the following etfect on the Group’s assets and liabilities:

Acquiree’s net assets at the acquisition date

Fair values on

acquisition

£000

Property, plant and equipment 13,451
Inventories 56
Cash and cash equivalents 1,917
Trade and other receivables . 686
Trade and other payables 2,767
Proyisions ) . (6,481)
Net identifiable assets and liabilities 6,862
Consideration paid: Initial cash price paid -
Fair value of NCI (30%) at acquisition date (note 3) (3,431)
3,431

Negative goodwill

Negative goodwill arises on the acquisition because of the seller’s desire for a quick sale in advance of the UK's referendum on " EU
membership in June 2016 and the assessed level of overcapacity in the sector.

Acquisition related costs _
The Group incurred acquisition related cost of £nil.
Acquired receivables

The fair value of acquired receivables was £686,000. The gross contractual amounts receivable are £9,263,000 and at the acquisition date
£8,577,000 of contractual cash flows were not expected to be received. c
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3  Non-controlling interest

Swrunarised financial information in respect-of the Group's subsidiaries for which the group has a non-controlling mter&st is set out below.
The summansed financial information below represents amounts before intragroup eliminations. :

Redcar Bulk Terminal Limited

31 March 2017

‘ £000
; Current assets . . . ’ . ) : 2,659
" Non-current assets » ‘ - ' : ‘ 13,451
"Current liabilities ' (9,248)
Non-current liabilities - : : «
. 6862
Equity attributable to owners of the Company -~ : ) 3,431
" Non-controlling interest . , . ' : 3,431
' 6,862

Profit/ (loss) attributable to owners of the Company 4 =
Profit/ (loss).attributable to the non-controlling interests ) ’ ] -

Profiv (loss) for the year

Vi . ‘ . . . N
* RBT’s acqusition date of 23 March 2017 is sufficiently close enough to the Group’s year end date of 31 March 2017 for the Directors to
have concluded that the fair value of the assets and liabilities on the acquisition date can be ﬁurly represented by the position as at 31 March
2017:
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4 Revenue ~
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The Directors consider the manufacture and sale of steel throughout the world and the rendering of services to be the only lines of

business.

Sale of goods
Rendering of services

An analysis of the revenue by destination is show below:

United Kingdom
Europe
Rest of the world

5 Operating costs

Costs by type: - :
Raw materials and consumables
Maintenance costs

Other external charges (including fuel k

& utilities, hire charges and carriage
costs) ’
Employment costs
Depreciation

" Other operating items |

. Period from
17 May 2016
to

31 March
2017

£000

o . 965,678
24,876

- : 990,554

Period from

17 May 2016

to

31 March 2017

- £000

474,635

419,704

J 96,215

) 990,554
Operating items
’ before
rationalisation costs,
gain on bargain

purchnse, Depreciation Gain on
depreciation and Rationalisation and ~ bargain :

amortisation costs amortisation purchase Total.

£000 £000 '£000 £000 £000

428,690 L= - = 428,690

75,327 = - : - 75,327

190,058 - - .- 190,058

173,520 - - = 173,520

h - < 5,890 : L= 5,890

75,112 11,085 - (49,822) 36,375

. 942,707 5890 909,860

11,085

(9,822
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6 Expensesv and auditor remuneration.

Included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income are the following:

Operating broﬁt is stated after charging/ (crediting):
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Impairment loss on trade receivables and prepayments

" Net exchange rate gain )
Impairment of inventory (Note 16)

Operating lease rental charges:
e Plant & machinery
e  Leasehold property
Costs of research and development

Audit related costs:.
~ Audit of these financial statements

_ Amounts receivable by the Company’s auditor and its associates in respect of:
Other assurance services .
Audit of financial statements of subsidiaries of the Compan

7 . Rationalisation costs

Breakdown of rationalisation custs

Separation costs
.IT separation costs

For the period ended 31 March 2017

Period from 17 May
2016 to 31 March
2017

£000

5,890
5,099

(8,557)

46,800

4,729
2,872
1,737

241

25
63

Period from .
17 May 2016
to
31 March 2017
. £000
7651
3,434

11,085

Separation costs of £7.7m represent legal and other professional tees associated with the separation trom Tata Steel in June 2016.
IT separatioi costs of £3.4m were one off costs incurred to enable the separation of British Steel IT systems from those of Tata Steel UK.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

8 Staff numbers and costs

The average number of persons employed by the Group (including Dircctors) during the period, analysed by category, was as follows:

. Sales staff’
Operational staff
Administrative staff’

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows:

Wages and salarics
Social security costs
Other pension costs

\

The Company had no employees during the period.

9 Directors' remuneration

MrD Qo!dstein, Mr M Meyohas, Mr N Meyohas and Mr Perlhagen did not reccive any remuneration from
. their services.

The remaining directors were appointed subsequent to the year end.
\

Number

114
4,57
293

4,978

Period from
17 May 2016 to
31 March 2017

“ £000

. 148,826
20,373
‘_4,321

173520

the Group in respect of

’
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10 Finance income

Other interest receivable

Total finance income

11 Finance expense

Bank loans and overdrafts

Finance leases

Amortised loan fees

Movement of foreign excharige derivative .
Net interest expense on defined benefit obligation
Other interest payable

3

12 Taxation

Recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Curent tax expense:

Income taxes .
Adjustments in respect of prior period

Current tax expense “

Deferred tax expense:
Origination and reversal of timing differences

Total tax expense

. . British Steel Holdings Limited
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements
For the period ended 31 March 2017

Period from
17 May 2016 to
31 March 2017

' £000

10

10

- Period from 17
May 2016 to 31
March 2017
£000

12,733
3,555
1,100

764 .
524
3

18,679

Period from

" 17 May 2016 to
31 March 2017
£000

{

3,123

3,123

(1,460)

1,663
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12 Taxation (continued)

Tax recognised in Other Comprehensive income .
Period from

17 May 2016 to
31 March 2017
£000

Actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit pension plan:
Current tax
Deferred tax movement in the year |, C (7,235)

(.239)

Reconciliation of effective tax rate
The current tax assessed for the period is lower tlmn the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 20%. The differences are explained

below:

Period from
17 May 2016 to
31 March 2017

£000

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation i ] ‘ : ] 65,266
Profit on ;)rcﬁnary activities multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax in the UK . 13.053

" Non-deductible expenses | 470
1,212

Impact of overseas tax rates
. Movement in unrecognised deferred tax . . (2,460)

Non taxable income (10 612)
Total tax R - 1663

Factors that may aﬁ"e‘ct Sfuture tax charges

Reductions have been made to the UK corporation tax rate to 19% etfective from 1 April 2017 (substantively enacted on 26 On,tober
2015), and to 17% effective 1 April 2020 (substantively enacted on 6 September 2016). The deferred tax asset at 31 March 2017 has
been calculated at the rates at which the temporary differences arc expected to unwind. ’



Notes to the financial statements (continued) .

13  Property, Plant and Equipment - Group .

Cost: )

At 17 May 2016

Acquisitions through business combinations
Other additions

Disposals .

Exchange rate changes

Transfers

At 31 March 2()i7
Depreciation'and impairment
At 17 May 2016

Depreciation charge for the period
Disposals

At 31 March 2017

Net-book value:
At 17 May 2016 -

VAt 3l Marc;h 2017

British Steel Holdings Limited
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements
For the period ended 31 March 2017

. Assets in
Land and Fixtures and Plant and course of .
buildings fittings  machinery construction Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
24,618 551 36,013 104 61,286
191 15 11,642 21,681 - 33,529
- - (3,340) - (3,340)
1,884 54 5,840 ~ 22 7,800
- - 268 (268) C s
26,693 620 50,423 21,539 99,275
850 87 4953 - . 5,890
: o - (1,632) - (1,632)
850, 87 3321 - 4,258
25,843 533 47,102 21,539 95,017
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

14 Investments in subsidiaries

The Company has the following investments in direct and indirect subsidiaries

Entity
British Stecl Limited

The Steel Company of Ireland
Limited

TSP, Projects Limited

British Steel France Rail S.A.S

British Steel France Rail Holdings

" 8AS

British Steel America Inc

British Steel GmbH

British Steel Italia S.r.]

Longs Steel Spain Interenational
C o :

Longs Steel Singapore Pte. Ltd

Longs Steel Poland Sp. Zoo
Redcar Bulk Terminal Lumted

Country of -

incorporation
England and Wales

Ireland
England and Wales

France
France
America
Germany
Italy
Spain
Singapore’

Poland )
England and Wales

% of
ordinary

shares held - Holding

100

100
100

100
100
100
100
100
100
100

100
S0

Direct

Indirect

Indirect

Indirect

Indirect

Indirect
Indirect

Indirect
Indirect

' Indirect

Indirect
Indirgct

British Steel Holdings Limited

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements

For the period cnded 31 March 2017

Registered Office Address

Brigg Road, Scunthorpe, North Lincolnshire,
DN16 I1BP :

Goodbody Secretarial services Limited,
International Financial Services Centre, North
Wall Quay, Dublin 1

. .Mendian House, The Cresent,

York, Yorkshire,
Y024 1AW )
164 rue de Marechal Foch, 57705 Hayange,

.France

2 Av Du Pdt 7 Fitzgerald Kennedy 78100
Saint Gennain en Layc

1700 East Golt Road, Schaumburg,

Illinois 60173, USA

17. Etage, Stadttor 1, Ditsseldorf, Nordrhein,
Westfalen, 40219, Germany

via [talis 44, Monza, ltaly

Room 181 1. Four Tower Business Area Regus
Torre de Cristal, Paseo de la Castellana 259¢
18" Floor, Madrid, Spain .

#04-01 Harbour Front Tower One, Singapore
098633,

Silesia Business Park, Katowice, Poland
Lakenby Main Offices

Lakenby Works, Middlesbrough, TS6 7RP

All the entities detailed in the table above are considered subsidiaries because all their shares:are directly or indirectly owned by the
Company and it has significant control over the activities of the subsidiaries. .

Company:

At 17 May 2016

At 31 March 2017

~

Shares in
subsidia'ly
undertakings

£000

Total

£600
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15 Deferneci tax assets and liabilities - Group

Assets Liabilities Total
31 March 31 March 31 March
2017 2017 2017
‘ £000 £000 £000
Fixed asset tcmp(;rary differences ) 16,490 é, 916) 10,574
Short term temporary differences 254 254
Detined benefit pension schemes 12,076 (1 70) 11,906
28820  (6.086) 22,734
* Movement in deferved tax during the period

Amounts ) Translation )
arising on Recognised in Recognised movement 31 March
acquisition income in OCI 2017
. o £000 £000 ~ £000 £000 £000
Fixed asset temporary differences 10,500 S T4 - : s 10,574
Short term temporary differences 40 214 - = - 254
Defined benefit pension schemes 3,040 1,172 7.235 459 ~ 11,906
13,580 1,460 7,235 459 22,734

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets of £60m in relation to £350in of historic trading losses, and £27m in relation to
£158m of fixed assel temporary differences. The Group does not consider that there is sufficient certainty of future profits against
which to relieve these asscts to support recognition on the Group’s balance sheet: The recognition criteria is assessed annually and the
deferred tax position amended accordingly. :

16 Inventories

Group
31 March 2017
- £000
Raw materials and consumables i 142,734
Wark in progress ‘ ' . ‘ 69,298
Finished goods . ) 91,448
303,480

Raw materials, consumables and changes in finished goods and work in progress recognised as cost of sales in the year amountcd to
£429.0m. The write-down of stocks to net realisable value amounted to £46.8m

There is no material difference between the value of stock included in the Statement of Financial Position and its replacement cost.
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17 Trade and other receivables

) h . Group Company

31 March 2017 31 March 2017

£000 £000

Trade and other receivables : ' 234,464 S e

Less: provision for impairment ’ . ' (9,907) =

Net trade and other receivables ) 224,557 -

Prepayments and accrued income ' - h 14,086 -

Other debtors . 18,040 =
Derivative financial instruments (Note 30) - ) _ ' 360 :

. = 171,353

Amounts owed by Group undertakings

257,043 17 1,353

The amount owed by Group undertakings to the Company represents the flow through of a shareholder loan from Olympus Steel to
British Steel Limited via British Steel Holdings Limited. See note 20 for further details.

Movement in the provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows

£000
At acquisition ' . ' : (12,134)
Charge for the period ’ ) (1,138)
Amounts written off as uncollectable ’ - 3,365
At 31 March 17 : \ (9,907)

*

Trade receivables have been aged with respect to the payment terms specified in the terms and conditions associated with customers as
follows: ‘
31 March 2017 -

Gross Provision Net position

£000 T . £000 £000

Amount not yet due : : 203,168 - 203,168
Past due note more than one month ' 17,846 98) . 17,748
Past due more than one month and less than three months . 2,836 (48) 2,788
Past duc more than threc months and less than six months 1,052 ’ (793) 259
Past due more than six months 9,562 (8,968) 594
At31 March 17 : 234,464 - (9,907 224557
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18 Cash and caﬁh equivalents - Group

31 March 2017
£000

Cash and cash equivalents per Statement of Financial Position e 52,952

Cash and cash equivalents per cash flow statements 52,952

19 Trade and other payables

Group  Company
31 March 31 March

2017 2017 .
£000 £000
Trade payables 200,915 -
Bills of exchange payable . 260 =
- Current tax 251 -
Other taxes and social security costs ) 5,945 -
Other creditors ¥ ) 34,324 -
Interest payable - 99 -
241,785 "
20 Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings
31 March 2017 Current Non-current . Group >~ Non-current " Company
N0 £000 £000 £000 £000
£'000 .
Bank loans and overdrafts - 45,770 * 45,770 o - -
Secured bank loan - 59,956 59,956 = -
Other loan liabilities - 167,832 167,832 171,353 171,353 -

45,770 227,788 273,558 - 171,353 171,353

The bank loan and overdrafts balance represents a repayment agreemelit to finance raw material cargos both on the water and held
within the Immingham Bulk Terminal (IBT) facility: The bank finances 70% of the value of raw matenal cargos in return tor an
interest puyment on the facility- balance of 3% + three month USD LIBOR rate.

The secured bank loan represents the draw down on a three year £165m asset backed [ending facility. Tl'llb is secured over
inventory and trade receivables. Interest accrues at 3% + central bank rates,

The other loan liabilities are secured and comprise a £]34m term loan payable to the parent company Olympus Steel Limited and
is due to be repaid in November 2019. Interest accrues monthly at 9% + 6 month LIBOR for the first thirty six months and on a

" six monthly basis thereafter.



Notes to the financial statements (continued)

20  Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings (continued)

Non-current loans are repayable as follows:

Due in two to three years

21 Finance lease liabilities - Group

Finance lease liabilities are payable as follows:

Less than one year
Between one and five years
More than five years

British Steel Holdings Limited

" Annual Réport and Consolidated Financial Statements

For the period ended 31 March 2017

Group Company
31 March 31 March
2017 - 2017
£000 £000
227788 171,353
Present value
of minimum
lease
payments Interest Principal
£000 £000 £000
> 3,585 1,452 2,133
14,340 4,328 10,012
1,652 . 'L460 10,192
22,337

29,577 7,240

The above lease arrangement terminates in 2025. The lease is a on a fixed repaymént basis with a fixed interest rate of 6.5%. The finance

lease liabilities are secured over the assets to which the lease relates.

The net bbok value of assets held unde{ tinance lemses'are £nil. |

22 Capital commitments

The Group had contracted commitments at the Statement of Financial Position date amounthxé to £4,993,193 and authorised contracts

not yet)in place of £9,510,692.
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23 Employee benefits

Retirement benefits
The Group operates a number of post retirement provisions for its employees including defined benetit pension schemes and certain

long service awards. The Group considers that the value of each of the retirement obligations is such that their disclosure should be
separated, accordingly the disclosures below represent the material elements of the Group's obligations,

The Group’s net obligations disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position are as follows:

31 March 2017

£000
Included within assets: ’
Corus Republic of Treland Scheme (1,001)

Included within liabilities: ]
British Steel Rail France and British Steel Rail France Holdmgs schemeb . . ’ 29,389

TSP Projects scheme .19.500

Total net pensions liability 48,889

A. Corus Republlc of Ireland Scheme

From April 2016, this defined benefit schéme ceased to'be a mu.ltl-employer scheme, and the approved Deed of Ccsmt1011 aud
Amendment segregated the element relating to the Group which was transferred on acquisition. The disclosures below are theretore
made in relation to deﬁned benefit obligations in accordance with IAS 19.

The most recemt actuarial valuation of the- soheme was prepared as al 31 March 2016 and has been updated to 31 March 2017 by a
suitably qualificd actuary, The report showed the fair value of the scheme’s assets to be £18,276.000, At the balance sheet date the
scheme showed an excess of assets over liabilities of £1 ,001,000. There were no contributions in the' period and no accruals at the
balance sheet date. The Group expects to pay two furthér deficit iump sum payments in 2017 and 2018 of £815,000, by which point the
- most recent funding agreement of 2009 will end.

The relevant disclosures in respect of the scheme are as follows:

31 March 2017

£000

Total defined benefit asset (18,276)
Net liability for defined benefit obligations (see following table) 17,275

Net detined beneht scheme surplus (1,001)
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23. Employeé benefits (continued)

Movement in net defined benefit liability/(asset)

Balanée at 1 June 2016

Included in Profit or loss
Interest cost/ (income)-

Included in OCI

Change in financial assumptions
Return on plan assets .
Actuarial experience on obligations
Translation difference

Other
Contributions paid by the emplovcr
Benefits paid

-

Balance at 31 March 2017

Plan assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Equity instruments

Debt instruments,

Other assets

Total

Actuarial assumptions '

Weighted-average assumptions to determine benefit obligations

Discount rate
Future salary increases
Future pension increases

Defined benéfit
obligation

31 March 2017
£000

15,789 -

258

139

(208)
1,931

17,275

©34)

British Steel Holdings Limited
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Fair value of plan
assets

31 March 2017
£000

(14,975)

(253)

a, 012)

-, 855)

(815)
634

(18,276)

Net defined benefit
liability/ (asset)

.31 March 2017
£000

- 814

139
(1,012)
(208)
76

(815)

(1,001)

31 March 2017
£000

47

10,859

1,132

238

18,276

31 March 2017
%

‘ 1.85
1.60
1.60

The assumptions relating to longevity underlying the pension llablhtles at the Statement of Financial Position date are based on standard
actuarial mortality tables and include an allowance for future unprovements in longevity. The assumptions are equivalent to expecting a

" 65-year old to live for a number of years as follows:

Current pensioner aged 65: 21.2 years (male), 23..7 years (femnle).

Future retiree upon reaching 65: 22.7 years (male), 24.9 years (female).
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23 Employee benefits (continued)
- Sensitivity analysis
The calculation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to the assumptions set out above, The foliowing table summarises how

the impact on the defined benefit obhcauon at the end of the reporting period would have increased (decreased) as a result of a change
in the respective.assumptions by nil percent. .

Discount rate a 1.6% discount rate would result in an increase in scheme liabilities of £785k
Inflation a 1.35% inflation rate would result in a decrease in scheme liabilities of £715k

-

The above sensitivities are based on the average duration of the benefit obligation determined at the date of the last full actuarial
valuation at 31 March 2017 and are applied to adjust the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period for the
-assumptions concerned. Whilst the analysis does not take account of the tull distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does
provide an approximation to the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

Funding

The Group cxpecis to pay £815,000 in contributions to its defined benefit plans in 2017.- ' _ >

B. British Steel France Rail and British Steel France Holdmgs Schemes

The most recent actuarial valuation of the scheme, was prepared as at 31 March 2017 by a suitably qualmed actuary. The valuation at the
balance sheet date showed an eXcess of liabilities over assets of £29,389, 000 Contributions made in Lhe penod were
£365,000, and there were no accruals at the balance sheet date.

The total defined benefit abligation at 3[ March 2017 compriscs:

£000
Retirement allowances 3,522
Supplementary retirement scheme 25,166
Total pension benefits . . o : - 28,68&
Long service award . , _ 701
Total employee benefits ' " - ' ) - . 24,389

Retirement Allowances:

The French pension system is operated ona “pay as you go” basis. Each employee is entitled to receive a basic pension from the Social
Security plus a complementary pension from defined contribution schemes ARRCO and AGIRC (management only for AGIRC). Moreover,
retiring allowances (hunp sums) must by law be paid by the employer when employees retire..

The allowances to be paid to British Steel France Rail’s employees are defined by the Collective Bargaining Agreement of the Metallurglcal
Industry. .

Supplementary pension scheme: -

" This Pension Scheme, set up by Arcelor, the Group to which British Stee] France Rail belonged prior to acquisition by Corus was closed to .
new participants on 31 December 1989. This plan is not externally funded through an insurance Company., The administration of the plan is
handled by a specific organisation IRUS (Institution de Retraite Usinor-Sacilor), The main features of the plan are the following:

) Pcnsionaible salary: Average linal 12 months' salary

Pensionable seniority: Seniority at Arcelor, Corus, Tata & British Steel
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23 Ewmployee benefits (conﬁnued)

Supplementm'y pension scheme (continued):
- Pension benefit : :

Number of years of service in between age 20 and 24 : 0.40% of pensionable salary per year
Number of years of service in between age 25 and 29 : 0.75% of pensionable salary per year
Number of vears of service in between age 30 and 34 : 1.75% of pensionable salary per year
Number of years of service in between age 35 and 54 : 2.00% ol pensionable salary per year
Number of years of service in between age 55 and 59 : 1.75';A> of pensionable salary per year
Nuinber of years of service in between age 60 and 64 : (0.75% of pensionable salary per year

The total pension benefit is limited to 62% of the pensionable sa]dry ‘ncluding Social Security pension, compulsory complementary
pension schemes ARRCO/AGIRC Normal Retirement age: .

To be at least 62 years of age with full eligibility under Social Security and 10 years of service
- Vesting : Benelit rights are not vested before age 62
- Early retirement pension eligibility : nil

- Increase for dependent child: 5% of pensionable salary per child (maxxmum 15%)

- Survivorship : Life penswu to spouse equal to 60% of deceased retiree's pension

Long Service Awards

British Stegl .France' Rail maintains a,policy of paying lunp sum gratifications upon anniversaries of employment as follows:
20 years of employment: 2% of the monthly salary per year of service

30 years of employment: 2% of the monthly salary per year of service

35 years of employment: 2% of the monthly salary per year of service

40 years of employment: 2% of the monthly salary per véar of service

' Based on an agreement from the tax authorities, these payments are tree of social charges.

The relevant disclosures in respect of IAS 19 are as follows:

31 March 2017

" £000
Total defined benefit liability 29,389
Net asset for defined benetit obligations (see following table) 29,389
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23 Employee benefits (continued)

Movement in net defined benefit Iinbility/xisset

-’

Balance at 1 June 2016
Curent service cost
Interest cost/(income)
Administrative expenses

Included in OCI )
Change m financial assumptions
Change in actuarial experience
‘Ianslation difterence

Other
Employer contributions

Balance at 31 March 2017

Actuarial assumptions

Weighted-average assumptions to determine benéﬁl obligations

Inflation

Discount rate

Future salary increases
Future pension increases

British Steel Holdings Limited - -
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements
For the period ended 31 March 2017

Defined

abligation

" 31 March 2017 -

' £000

24,416
304
219
122

668
1,557
3,068

(965)

29,389

Net defined
benefit liability
31 March 2017

£000

24,416
304
219
122

668
1,557
3,068

(965)

29,389

" 31 March 2017

%

1.8
1.5
28

1.0 .

The assumptions relating to longevity underlying the pension liabilities at the Statement of Financial Position date are based on standard
actuarial mortality tables and include an allowance for future improvements in longevity. The assumptions are equivalent to expecting

a 62-year old to live for a number of years as follows:

Current pensibner aged 62: 21.3 years (male), 25.63 yéars (female).

Future retiree upon reaching 62: 21:3 years (male), 25.63 years (female)

- Sensitivity analysis

The calculation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to the assimptions set out above. The [ollowing table summarises how the
impact on the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period would have increased (decreased) as a result of a Lhange in

the respectlve assumptions by nil percent.

Discount rate
Impact (£'000)

1.0%
(31,528) .

2.0%
(27,461)
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23 Employee :beneﬁts (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

In valuing the liabilities of the pension fund at £nil, mortality abﬂmmpnons have been made as indicated below. If life expectancy had
been changed. to assume that all members of the fund lived for one year longer, the value of the reported linbilities at 31 March 2017
would have mcrcased by £nil before deferred tax.

‘The above sensxtmhes are based on the average duration of the benefit obligation determined at the date of the last full actuarial
valuation at 31 March 2017 and are applied to adjust the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period for the
assumptions concerned. Whilst the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does

provide an approximation to the sensitivity of the asswmptions shown.

The Group expects to pay the following in contributions to its defined benefit plans in the future.

Expected benefit payinents over the next 10 years (amounts disclosed in Euros)

FY18: €1,322,902
FY19: : €1,303,512
FY20: . €1,339975 -
FY21: €1,247,521
FY22: €1,445,581
FY23-FY27: €6,020,057

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period is nil years.

C. TSP Projects Limited Scheme

The most recent actuarial valuation of the scheme, was prepared as at 31 Murch 2016 and has been updated lo 31 March 2017 by a
suitably qualified actuary. The report showed the fair value of the scheme’s assets to be £51,900,000. At the balance sheet date the
scheme showed an excess of liabilities over assets of £l9 500,000. There were contributions of £900,000 in the period, and no accruals
at the balance sheet date. : ‘

The relevant disclosures in respect of the scheme are as follows: - .
31 March 2017

£000
Defined benefit, asset : . ‘ (51,900)
Total defined benefit asset . : . ) . ’(51,9@)
Total defined benefit liability s 71,400
Net liability for defined benefit obligation (see following table) ’ ' 19,500
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Balance at 1 June 2016

Included in Profit or loss
Current service cost

Interest cost/ (income)
Administrative expenses and taxes

Included in OCI
Change in financial assumptions
Retum on plan assets

Other
Contributions pald by the emplover

Benefits pald

Bulance at 31 March2017 '

Plan assets

‘Growth assets
Debt instruments
Other Asset

Total

Actuarial assumptions

Weighred—&vemge assumptions to determine benefit .obliga!ians

Discount rate
Intlation
Future pension increases

British Steel Holdings Limited
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements
For the period ended 31 March 2017

Defined benefit Fair value of plan  Net defined benefit

" obligation assets liability/ (asset)
31 March 2017 31 March 2017 31 March 2017
£000 £000 £000
59,300 . - (47,500) . 11,800

100 e 100

1,600 (1,300) 300

- 200 : 200

"12,100, @3179) 7921

- (821) o (821)
(1,700) - 1,700 '

T 71,400 (51,900) 19,500

31 March 2017
£000

34,000
17,500
400

51,900

31 March 2017
Yo

2.50
3.05
2.05

The assumptions relating to longevity underlying the pension liabilities at the Statement of Financial Position date are_based on standard
actuarial mortality tables and include an allowance for future improvements in longevm/ The assumptions are equivalent to expecting

a 65-vear old to live for a number of years as tollows:

Current pensioner aged 65: 21.2 - 23.6 years (male), 23.0 - 24.8 years (female).

Future retiree upon 'reaching 65: 23.6 - 23.9 years (male), 25:4*- 27.2 years (female).
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Sensitivity analysis

The calculation of the defined benetit obligation is sensitive to the assumptions set out above. The following table summarises how the impact
on the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting penod would have increased (decreased) as a result of a change in the respective

assumpuons by the a.mounts set out below.

, Approximate

Sensitivity change in

obligation

' £000

Discount rate " -1.0%p.2 © 14,800
Intlation +0.5% p.a : 7,000
+1 year 2,300

Life Expectancy

. i ( .
The above sensitivities are based on the average duration of the benefit obligation determined at the date of the last full actuarial
valuation at 31 March 2017 and are applied to adjust the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period for the
assumptions concerned. Whilst the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does

provide an approximation to the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

Funding

The Group expects to pay a fu;ther £900,000 in contributions to its defined bencfit plans in 2017.
Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a defined contnbutmn pension plan. The total expense relating to these plans in the ‘current period was
£3,511,000,
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24 Provisions - Group

Rationalisation Environmental (ii) Other provisions " Total

costs (i) - ) (iii)

£000 £000 £000 £000
Amounts ansing from acquisition - - 11,004 . 24,751 57,561 93,316
Provisions made : : - 938 - 188 1,126
Provisions utilised in the period ’ (6,379) - (958) (7,337)
Provisions released during the period (2,607) - 9,716) (12,323
Unwinding of discount ' . 111 = 245 356
Balance at 31 March 2017 2, 12_9 ’ 25,689 . 47,320 75,138
Non-current : l ' ’ 41,092
Current . . ‘ 34,046 .

75,138

(i) Rationalisation costs include redundancy provisions £0.2m and property related items of £1.9m. The provisions are expected to be

. utilised by 2018 and 2022 respectively. .

(i) Environmentsl provisions primarily represents the costs of disposing of some waste by-products at the Scunthorpe site including

landfill taxes. Due to the nature of this provision, the timing of any settlement is uncertain.

(iii) Other closing provisions include £37m in réspect of an onerous legacy freight contract. The deal comumits British Steel to paying
freight costs greater than the market rate until the end of 2021 and will be utilised over that period. The remaining €10.3m relates to
the dilapidations on leased property. Dilapidations of*£6.5m related to the Redcar Bulk Terminal Limited leased properties and will
be utilised by the end of the lease date in 2033. Dilapidations of £3,8m relating to downstream distribution leased properties with a
weighted average utilisation of 4.2 years. '



British Stee! Holdings Limited
Annual Report and Consolidated Financinl Statements
For the period ended 31 March 2017

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

25 Capital and reserves

Share capitnl ) ’ ’ : ‘ 2017
Authorised, allotted, called up o : £
and tully paid .

| ordinary share of €1 each . ‘ : : . : 1
Reserves

31 March 2017

. ' £'000

Actuarial gains and losses in.the period ) ‘ -(9,065)
Deterred tax on defined benefit pension schemes i 7,235
(1,830)

Exchange rate movements on fiet investments ‘ . 8,557
Retained carmings : . ' : 60,362
Total S ' _ : _ 67,089

\ . . . . )
The actuarial reserve records cumulative actuarial gains and losses in line with the actuarial reports provided by our third party Independent
actuaries net of associated deferred tax. The pension deferred tax has been calculated in line with relevant tax standards. The retranslation
reserve records the ciunulative exchange rate niovements on net investiments in subsidiaries where the functional currency is not in GBP, these
such companies are the Steel Company of Ireland, British Steel France Rail S.A.S and British Steel France Rail Holdings S.A.S. The retained
earnings reserve records cumulative retained protits as reported in the protit and loss account. B )

26 Immediate and ultimate parent entity and controlling party

The Company is a “wholly-owned subsidiary undertaking ol Olympus Steel Limited (Lhe um11ed1ale parent company), a company
incorporated in Jersey.

The Group's ultimate parent company is Olympus Steel 2 Limited, a company incorporated in Jersey, the accounts of which are neither
consolidated nor publicly available. The largest and smallest Group of which the results of the Company are consolidated is that
headed by British Steel Holdings Limited. The Dlrectors consider Marc Meyohas, Nathaniel Meyohas and Storford Ltd to be the ultimate
controlling parties of the Company.

- 27 Related parties

During the period ended 31 March 2017, British Steel Limited was charged a quarterly management fee by Greybull Capital LLP. Greybull's
partners are Marc Meyohas, Nathaniel Meyohas and Richard Perlhagen, who are British Steel Holdings directors. The fees paid to Greybull
Ca'pital LLP in the period amounted to £3m.

During the period ended 31 March 2017, British Steel Limited entered into four separate foreign exchange transactions with Monarch Airlines
Limited. Monarch Airlines Limited's ultimate controlling parties include Marc Meychas and Nathaniel Meyohas who are directors of British
Steel Holdings Limited. British Steel sold a total amount of Euros 28.5m to Monarch Airlines and reccnved £22.0m. There were no outstanding
arrangements at the year end.
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27 Related parties (continued)
- The compensation of key management personnel, considered to be individuals who were appointed directors subsequent to the year end,
is set out in the following table:

2017
4 - : £000
Key management remuneration including social security costs’ . ‘ C 1,310
Company contributions to money purchase schemes : ) _ - i 4
Total compensation 1,314
28 Post balance sheet events
There are no significant events since the year end.
29  Operating leases
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases rentals are payable as '
follows: : : ’
Group . Company
31 March 31 March
2017 2017
£000 £000
Less than one year . ‘ 8,217 -
* Between one and five years ) - : 37,027 -
o : : ) : 55,943 B

More than five years

Operating lease payments represel'lt rentals payable by the Group in respect of the j ett); at Immingham Bulk Terminal. The lease terminates
in 2027 (with the right to renew for a further two periods of five years on substantially the same terms). The charges are fixed until 2020 at

which point they will move according to the relative change in the CPL
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30 Financial instruments

The Group is exposed to the risks that arise from its use of financial instnunents, This note describes the objectives, policies and processes of
the Group for managing those risks and the methods used to measure them. Further quantitative information in respect of these risks is
presented throughout these financial statements. :

Capital risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt (borrowings disclosed in note
20 after deducting cash and bank balances) and equity of the Group (comprising issucd capital, reserves and retained earnings and disclosed
in note 25). The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Financial risk lﬁanagement objectives

The Group’s Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international financial
markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group through internal risk reports which analyses
exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit
risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk

The Group seeks to minimise the eftects of these risks by. using derivative financial instruments to hedge these risk exposures. The use of’
tinancial derivatives is governed by the Group’s policies approved by the board of directors, which provide written principles on foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, the use of financial derivatives and non-derivative financial instruments, and the investment of
excess liquidity. Compliance with policies and exposure liinits is reviewed by the internal auditors on a continous basis. The Group does
not enter into or rade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.-

Principal financial instruments )
The principal financial'instruments used by the Group, from which financial instrument risk arises are as follows:
o Trade and other receivables : )
e Trade and other payables '
o Cash and cash equivalents
e Borrowings
The carrying value of these financial instruments is constdered to approxitnate their fair value

 Fair values

For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entircty, which are described
as tollows: »
e Level | inputs are quoted prices (unad_;usted) in active markets for identical assets or lmblhm.s that the entity can access at the
measurement date; ‘
e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included w1thm Level I, thut arc observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and ,

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The Company's financial instruments are all classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy:, The Company's derivative financial assets and

liabilities are categorised as Level 2 and their fair value is estimated by disclosing the difterence between the contractual forward price and
the current forward price for the residual maturity of the contract using a risk -free interest rate.

W
[S)
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The tollowing table details the Group's financial instruments held at fair value:

2017
~ £000
Financial assets :
Cash ’ o 52,952
.Denvative financial assets (note l7) 360
Trade and other receivables » T 242,397
295,909
Financial liabilities - I o
‘ 241,534

Trade and other payables ) ‘

Bank and other loans : : 273,558

Finance lease obligations . 22,337
537,429

Derivative financial instruments used by the Group represent forward exchange contracts. The Company does not hold or issue derivative
financial instruments for trading purposes. All transactions in derivative financial instruments are undertaken to manage risks arising from
underlying business activities.

Credit risk - .

Credit risk refers to thie risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. Credit risk
arises principally from the Group’s cash balances and trade and other receivables. ‘The concentration of the Group's credlt nisk is considered by
counterparty.

The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufticient collateral where appropriate as a
means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Group only transacts with entities that are rated the equivalent of investiment
grade and above. This information is supplied by independent rating agenues where avmlable and if not avaxlable the Group uses other publicly
available tinancial information and its own trading records to rate its major customers.

The Group’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded
is spread amongst approved counterparties. Credlt exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by the risk
management committee annually:

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas: Ongoing credit evaluation
is performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable and, where appropriate, credit guarantee insurance cover is purchased.

The Group does not have any significant credit nsk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar
characteristics. The Group defines counterpartics as having similar clmr'lctensucs if they are related entities.

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative tinancial instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with lugh credit-ratings
assigned by intemational credit-rating agencies

Market risk )

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will aﬂect the
Company’s income or the value of its holdmgs of financial instruments. .

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficuity in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due. Ultimate responsibility
for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors. The Board manages liquidity risk by regularly reviewing the Group’s cash
requirements by reference to short term cash flow forecasts and medium term ‘working capital projections.,
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30 TFinancial instruments (cox{tinued) )
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods.
The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of tinancial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate curves at the balance sheet date. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Group

- may be required to pay.

Weighted ' ,

average Less than 1 1-5 years S+ years Total
. year

. interest rate . : .
31 March 2017 i . % - £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Non-interest bearing . - 241,534 . - - 241,534
Finance lease liability ' 6.5 3,585 14,340 11,652 29,577
Vanable interest rate instruments 73 . 49,746 . 279,329 » 329,075
72 294865 293,669 11,652 600,186

Foreign currency risk

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows. This is based on the carrying amount for monetary financial
instruments except derivatives when it is based on notional amounts.

31 March 2017 o . Sterling - Euro US Dollar Total
: ’ £000 ) £000 £000 £000 !

Cash and cash equivalents 25,562 16,000 . 11,390 52,952
Trade and other receivables . ] ' 179,717 62,880 - 242,597
Secured bank loans Co (273,558) - _— (273,558)
Trade and other payables (216,221) (25,313) = (241,534)
Finance lease obligations . (22,337) - - - (22,337)

I 360 - 360

Forward exchange contracts

Balance sheet exposure .  (306837) 53927 11,390 (241,520)

Y4
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